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 Vol XXXV11 No 3                 March 2010 

Norwich, St Etheldreda 

50p to non-members 



ITEMS FOR SALE BY THE SOCIETY  
 
 

Tea Towels -Five Suffolk or five Norfolk Churches              £2.75            Plus 50p p&p 
 

Notelets -Suffolk or Norfolk Churches, 10 with envelopes   £1.30 Plus 60p p&p 
 

Bookmarks -Red leather with logo/Society name in gold    £1.00 Plus 20p p&p 
 

East Anglian Round Tower Churches Guide  
Revised edition of A5 booklet                           £1.00 Plus 20p p&p 
 

The Round Church Towers of England  - By S Hart      £15.99            Post free* 
 

The Round Tower Churches of Norfolk                         £10.99            Post free* 
By Dorothy Shreeve and óLyn Stilgoe 
 

Round Tower Churches to the West, East and South of Norwich  
By Jack Sterry                                                                   £10.99 Post free*  

 

Round Tower Churches on the Norfolk and Suffolk Borders  
By Jack Sterry                                                            £9.99 Post free* 
 

Round Tower Churches. Hidden Treasure of North Norfolk  
By Jack Sterry                                                           £9.99   Post free* 
 
 

*These items are posted at no extra cost. 
 

Please forward orders to: - Mr E Spelman, 105 Norwich  Road, New Costessey, 
Norwich  NR5 0LF. Cheques payable to The Round Tower Churches Society.  
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W O L T E R T O N  A N D 
M A N N I N G T O N  E S T A T E S 

MANNINGTON 

GARDENS & COUNTRYSIDE 
 

COUNTRYSIDE Walks and Trails. 

Park open every day from  9 am. Car Park £2.00  
GARDENS. Extensive beautiful gardens  

surround medieval  moated manor.  

Heritage Rose Garden  
Tearooms - Shop - Plants and Roses.  

Open May-September, Sundays 12-5 pm  

June-August. Weds. Thurs, & Fridays 11-5 pm  
£5.00/£4.00 Children Free.  Events Programme. 

The Lord and Lady Walpole   

Mannington & Wolterton Estates  Norwich NR11 7BB  Telephone Saxthorpe (01263) 584175/768444 

Email: laurelwalpole@manningtongardens.co.uk 

 

WOLTERTON  

PARK 
HISTORIC PARK around eighteenth century  
mansion.  Park open every day from 9 am.  
Car Park £2.00 
Trails - Orienteering - Adventure Playground  
Round Tower of St. Margaret's Church in Park.  
Hall open Fridays from 24th April to 30th  
October, 2-5 pm (last tour 4 pm) £5.00.  
Write or telephone for details and for special  
events programme. 
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ROUND TOWER CHURCHES SOCIETY 
 
 

PATRON         HRH The Prince of Wales   
 
 

FOUNDER                    Mr W.J. Goode  
 

CHAIRMAN   Mr Stuart Bowell   
   2 Hall Road, Chilton Hall, Stowmarket, Suffolk  IP14 1TN 
 Tel: 01449 614336  
 

VICE-CHAIRMAN         Mrs Anne Haward  
          12 Church Green, Broomfield, Chelmsford, Essex CM1 7BD 
          Tel: 01245 440225    email: a.haward25@btinternet.com 
 

SECRETARY  Mrs ôLyn Stilgoe 
 Crabbe Hall, Burnham Market, Kingôs Lynn  PE31 8EN 
 Tel: 01328 738237   email: jastilgoe@aol.com 
  

TREASURER  Mr Richard Barham   
 6 The Warren, Old Catton, Norwich,  NR6 7NW  
          Tel: 01603 788721  

GRANTS OFFICER  Mr Nick Wiggin  
 Fir Tree Cottage, Witnesham, Ipswich, Suffolk  IP6 9EX 
 Tel: 01473 785596   email: nickwiggin@hotmail.com 

PUBLICITY OFFICER  Mr Edgar Spelman   
& POSTAL CLERK  105 Norwich Road, New Costessey, Norwich  NR5 0LF 
 Tel: 01603 743607  

LECTURERS Mr Stuart Bowell (see above) 
(Slide Shows)  Mrs Anne Haward  (see above) 
 Mr Richard Barham  (see above) 
                                      Mr John Scales - Pastons, 30 Stoke road, Poringland,   

                                           Norwich NR14 7JL. Tel: 01508 493680 
   

COMMITTEE                   Mrs Teresa Wiggin  
MEMBERS Fir Tree Cottage, Witnesham, Ipswich, Suffolk  IP6 9EX 

 Tel: 01473 785596 
 Mr Stephen Hart  
 20 High Street, Easton on the Hill, Stamford PE9 3LR 
 Tel: 01780 762152 

 Ms Susan Williams  

 Flinten Barn, Thornage Road, Letheringsett, NR25 7JD 
 Tel: 01263 712301    email: swilliams151@btinternet.com 

Website: www.roundtowers.org.uk              Registered Charity No: .267996 

Registered Address: Crabbe Hall, Burnham Market, Kingôs Lynn, Norfolk, PE31 8EN 
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ROUND TOWER CHURCHES SOCIETY TOURS 2010 

Everyone is welcome to attend both sets of Tours. There is no charge,            

although donations to the churches are encouraged. Refreshments will be       

provided by one of the churches each afternoon. The Sunday Tours visit       

Norfolk Churches with square, round or no towers! These Sunday Tours end 

with a form of Service, usually Evensong at 6.30pm, though attendance is 

optional. Any queries please phone ôLyn Stilgoe on 01328 738237.                                                                                                                             

Saturday Tours - first church 2.30pm 

 
5th June        Beeston St Lawrence, Ashmanhaugh, Great Hautbois 

  

3rd  July          Roydon, Wortham, Stuston 

 

7th August         Kilverstone, Breckles, Rockland St Peter 

 

4th September    Long Stratton, Topcroft, Denton 

 

All the Tours are in Norfolk, except Wortham and Stuston in Suffolk  

on the 3rd of July. 

Church Tours - Sundays, first church 2.30pm 

 
18th April          Stiffkey, Cockthorpe, Wighton, Great Walsingham 

 

16th May           Northrepps, Sidestrand, Trimingham, Gimingham  

         

20th June           Stratton St Michael, Shelton, Pulham Market,  

                           Pulham St Mary 

 

18th July            South Acre, West Acre, Castle Acre, Newton by Castle Acre 

Tour and AGM    
 

8th May           10.30am  Geldeston, Hales, Seething    

        2.15pm  AGM,  SeethingVillage Hall 
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Membership Subscription 
 

Minimum £10 (overseas £15)          

annually of which 40% is for the 

printing and posting of The Round 

T o w e r  m a g a z i n e  a n d                     

administration, with the balance       

going to the Repair Fund. 
 

Magazines are published on the 1st 

of  March, June, September and         

December. Membership renewal  

date  is  the  first  of these  dates  

following  the  application  for           

membership. 
 

To  join  the  Society,  please   make 

contact with the  Treasurer:- 
 

Mr Richard Barham   
6 The Warren, Old Catton,  

Norwich,  NR6 7NW  

Tel: 01603 788721  

Welcome to an issue of puzzles! 

Are the church and tower at St 

Etheldredaôs, Norwich preï        

Conquest?; is there enough           

evidence at  St Clements,              

Fiskerton and at St Mary & All 

Saints, Great Walsingham to        

support round tower theories; 

when is a tower a turret or a          

turret a tower and why were fish 

used as weathervanes? Your 

thoughts on any of the above 

would be most welcome...For 

those in a more reflective mood a 

recap on the second part of the 

Summer Tours or John Leeôs 

Sketching Summer may be of  

interest. Enjoy! 
 

The next issue is June and the 

deadline for insertion  is Friday  

30th April 2010. 
 

Please send items for publication 

either as email attachments or on 

disc as  separate files ï text, photos,      

drawings etc., or by post to:- 
 

Susan Williams 

Flinten Barn 

Thornage Road 

Letheringsett 

Holt 

Norfolk 

NR25 7JD 

Tel: 01263 712301 

swilliams151@btinternet.com 
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This church is built on ground that slopes downwards quite steeply from 

west to east. It has an aisleless nave, a chancel of the same width, a south 

porch and a round west tower with an octagonal top. The nave is 19 feet 

wide internally with side walls thinner than normal for early flint walls ï 

about 2'2" thick, but the west wall measured outside the tower averages 

about 3'4". 
 

The church has manifestly undergone considerable restoration in the            

nineteenth century. The nave walls, which in their lower parts are of            

uncoursed flint rubble appear to have had their upper parts rebuilt and 

raised ï above window-head level they are faced with knapped flints in a 

style quite different from the lower work. All the windows are renewals in 

Victorian versions of the Decorated style and buttresses have been added. 

The chancel appears to have been entirely rebuilt, faced with knapped flint-

work. 
 

The nave retains NW and SW quoins of Caen stone, and in the south wall 

just short of its east end, there is an early buttress built of flint with dressed 

stone corners; it is about 2'8" wide with a projection of about 6". A round-

headed Norman south door has three orders and roll mouldings in its arch. 

At a level about half-way up the windows, remnant sections of a horizontal 

Caen stone string course moulding (not  mentioned  in Goode's books),  run 

ST ETHELDREDA, NORWICH 

 

A nineteenth-century drawing of the church by J.Sillet before the extensive  

Victorian alterations of 1883 
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Tuesday, 24th August at 2pm 
 

STANFORD TRAINING AREA TOUR  

 

There is to be a special visit, for RTCS 

members only, to hopefully the four       

redundant churches still standing in the 

Stanford Training Area, including the 

round tower church at Stanford. The 

final programme will depend on 

whether any of these churches are within the live firing ranges in use on 

that day.  Names, addresses and phone numbers of those who wish to join 

the Tour should be given to 'Lyn Stilgoe (01328 738237), who will send 

further details and require £5 per head (payable to RTCS) nearer the time. 

 

Please note: Park cars at West Tofts Camp by 1.45pm where a 55 seater 

coach will be waiting; no-one under 18 years; no dogs; cameras/video        

recorders only by prior consent. Places will be allocated on a first come, 

first served basis, and if over-subscribed a reserve list will be kept.  

DATES FOR THE DIARY 

  

 

 

Photos and Jottings   
 

All Saints Church, Stanford  
 

òOn Christmas day 2002 I was on 

duty in the Stanford Training Area 

and ate my picnic lunch by All 

Saints Church in  a lovely  

Breckland setting...ó    

           Coincidently sent in by Tom Pallister 
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Saturday 19th June 
 

REDGRAVE, RICKINGHALL SUPERIOR AND INFERIOR 

CHURCHES GUIDED TOUR  
 

Clive Paine will be leading a guided tour of the above three churches on        

Saturday, June 19th commencing at 10.30am.  The tour will start at Redgrave 

Church, where coffee will be served from 10am followed by lunch of quiche 

and salads etc. at Redgrave church. After lunch drive to Rickinghall Inferior 

Church followed by a short walk to Rickinghall Superior Church.  Tickets 

will be £13 for the three churches, including lunch. Further information and 

tickets can be booked by June 12th with Jean Sheehan on 01379 890237. All 

profits from this tour will be for the benefice of Redgrave-cum-Botesdale 

with the Rickinghalls. 
 

Redgrave church is a fourteenth century redundant church which has been 

beautifully restored by the Churches Conservation Trust with much               

additional work by Redgrave Church Heritage Trust, including loos and         

ample car parking.  Rickinghall Superior Church is Perpendicular, again well 

restored by the Churches Conservation Trust.  Rickinghall Inferior Church 

has an early Norman round tower with mainly fourteenth century additions. 

DATES FOR THE DIARY 

THE RYBURGH CONCERT SEASON 2010 

St Andrewôs Church, Great Ryburgh, Norfolk 
 

Saturday 17th April  ñAyres and Gracesò 

A concert of songs for Lute and Voice 
 

Saturday 15th May  ñ I Musicantiò 

Music for four, five and six voices from Tudor times to the present day 
 

Friday 11th June   ñMistresses and Nostalgiaò 

A song recital on a Shakespearean theme given by Hugh Latham 
 

Saturday 31st July  Piano recital by Pippa Trent 
 

All concerts begin at 7.30pmðretiring collection in aid of church restoration. 

Sunday 6th June 12.00 noonð5.00pm 

BEACHAMWELL VILLAGE GARDENS OPEN DAY  
 

Organ  Recitals, Hilgay Silver Band, Ouse washes Molly Dancers,  

Ploughmanôs Lunches, Afternoon Teas, Variety of Stalls, Raffle & Tombola 
 

In aid of St Maryôs Church, Beachamwell.  Enquiries: 01366 328817 
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 between the windows and         

buttresses on both sides of the nave 

with, on the south, a short length at 

a lower level east of the early         

buttress. The moulding is about 4" 

high and projects about 3" from the 

wall face and is decorated with the 

typical Norman zig-zag motif. At 

the west end on the north side, it 

rises to form a small semi-circle as 

if it might have been a window 

hood mould ï it seems too small 

and too high to have been above a 

door although now, some way         

below it, there is a wider door with 

a four-centred arch.  
 

Convex fillets fill the re-entrant angles between the tower and nave west 

wall. The tower's first-floor west window is probably a later insertion; it is 

surrounded by knapped flints. 
 

This tower is one of those in which not only the octagonal stage but also the 

upper part of the circular stage has been rebuilt or added. Only about 14½ 

feet (measured at the tower-to-nave junction on the north side) of the            

original tower structure survives; for about five feet or so above this level, 

up to the corbelled brick base of the octagonal top stage, the circular walls 

contain much knapped flint and, about six feet apart, there are vertical brick 

bands of alternating headers and stretchers. These bricks look post-medieval 

and are similar to those that form the corbelled base of the octagon, those in 

the octagon's quoins and those forming the segmental arches of the belfry 

openings in its south, west and north faces.  
 

The tower's internal diameter is 10'7" and the interior circularity is              

maintained in the east wall where the thickness at the tower arch apex is 

3'2". The tower arch opening is 7'2" wide between reveals with a pointed 

chamfered stone arch springing from moulded imposts on semi-circular half 

column responds.  
 

There is little definite evidence in the lower part of the tower's circular stage 

on  which  to  judge its  date  or  to establish  whether  it  was  contemporary 

with the nave or a  post-Norman addition. However,  the similarity of the 

flintwork  in  the  tower  wall  and  fillets  to  that  in  the nave west wall, the  

 

The semi-circular extension of  

the Norman string course moulding in  

the nave north wall 
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internal  circularity of the tower's east wall and its thickness relative to that of 

the nave west wall suggest that the original church and tower would have 

been built at the same time; if so, the positive Norman features in the church 

walls  described above, would also establish the lower part of the tower's       

circular stage as Norman. The pointed tower arch is likely therefore to have 

been a later alteration.  

Archaeologically, this church is probably one of the most important round-

towered churches because the nave walls themselves rather than doorways or 

windows in them can be dated beyond reasonable doubt. The main evidence 

for this is the moulded string course of Caen stone, a material unavailable 

before the Conquest and probably not obtainable before Norwich Cathedral 

was begun in 1096, and the early shallow buttress with stone dressings which 

probably defined the western end of the original chancel. This type of buttress 

(it is not a pilaster), is a characteristic Norman element and there is no reason 

or evidence to support speculation that its stone corners are later                      

embellishments of a Saxon flint pilaster rather than original parts of the           

buttress. It has an exact parallel in the similar feature on the Lazar chapel in 

Norwich, founded in the time of Bishop de Losinga, (1090-1119). There are 

no precedents for Saxon flint buttresses of this width with a 6" projection.  
 

There can be little doubt that these two features are Norman, and in the           

absence  of  any evidence  to suggest that they might  be later  insertions, they  

 

The nave south wall showing the short lengths of Norman string course moulding 

between the windows and buttresses. Note the smaller projection of the wide Norman 

buttress by comparison with the three narrower Victorian ones. Compare this picture 

with Silletôs drawing 
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In 1524 the curate of Great Walsingham left a bequest for the repair of both 

his parish churches in return for which an annual Easter-tide service of        

Placebo and Dirige were to be said in them. This suggests that All Saints 

Church was still then in use yet is almost certain that none of his bequest 

was spent repairing that church. Despite having been a supplicant at 

Walsingham Priory, Henry VIII closed it when he dissolved the larger         

monasteries of England in the 1538. The two churches then lost its patron 

and fell on hard times. In 1552 the óChurch Goodes Surveyô was carried out 

across Norfolk by Crown Commissioners. In Great Walsingham they found 

that the wardens for both churches had cleverly sold off the church plate to 

raise money for bridge and road repairs in the parish. Some money was still 

in hand. This suggests that the chancel of St Peters had been abandoned and 

All Saints Church was demolished only a few years earlier, yet the record 

notes that All Saints Church ówas long demolishedô. Perhaps the burial yard 

of All Saints was still in use though there are no memorials surviving there 

today. There are no other early records to say whether the tower of All 

Saints Church ever held bells. In the 1870s there were still substantial ruins 

to be seen in the field but today there are only the remains of wall                 

foundations. (C.Cox, vol I, page 1911). 

 

Dom Bede of Cambridge wrote in my volume of Coxô óNorfolk Churchesô, 

that St Peters Church, óalmost a ruin; to be restored by SPABô, 6 June 1923. 
 

                                                                                              Richard Harbord 

 

ST MARYôS APPLETON 
 

Terry Allen wrote in response to the piece on St Maryôs Church, Appleton 

(September 2009, Vol XXXV11 No 1) that whilst finding the piece              

interesting he was concerned that the  conservation work has left the site in 

a bit of a mess so it is now fairly neglected again and overgrown. He asks if 

the Society is able to exert any influenceðan item we can perhaps discuss 

at the next AGM.  

 

He also pointed out that 

the coffin lid (pictured) 

is believed locally to be 

that of a Knightôs            

Templar grave. 
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The original church may have stood in the middle of its burial yard but was 

then extended eastwards so that it abutted the lane on that side. The boundary 

wall of the churchyard can still be recognised in the ground except on the 

northern side. It measures about 190ft  east-west by 226ft north-south,           

enclosing an area of almost an acre. The ground falls about 10ft from the 

church down to the lane so the entrance to the burial yard was probably in its 

north-east corner.  

 
The Domesday Survey of 1086 makes it clear that Little Walsingham was        

already growing faster than its neighbour. The establishment of its shrine in 

1061 associated with twin wells and the óHoly House of Nazarethô led to the 

founding of a Priory. Kings, prelates and other dignitaries flocked to 

Walsingham. By the late 1200s it was said to rival Canterbury in the number 

of votaries it received so the monastery and its town became wealthy.                                              

 
In 1268 the lord of the manor left his church rights in Great Walsingham to 

the Priory and this was the beginning of a take-over by that monastery. In 

1280 the Archbishop of Canterbury agreed that the rectory of All Saints 

Church could be appropriated by Walsingham Priory who then became the 

churchôs patron. About 1320, a new parish church of St Peters, Great 

Walsingham was begun on land south of All Saints. St Peters was designed 

entirely in a consistent Decorated style so for once we see a church where all 

the windows are of a similar pattern. It has a fine tower, which unusually has 

its original medieval bells. The nave and two aisles also have most of their 

splendid medieval furniture. It was probably incomplete at the time of the 

Black Death in 1349. The plague was a set back for Walsingham Priory 

where a new Prior was appointed presumably to replace one who had died in 

the plague. In 1350 the two parish churches of Great Walsingham were 

merged and reduced to a curacy. The óChurch Goodes Surveyô of 1368 

(Norfolk Record Society vol 19, page 92) shows that All Saints was rich in its 

contents. It held ten liturgical books; the usual altar furnishings and               

vestments; a lenten veil and unusually two banners with the BVM enthroned, 

bearing a carona and emblazened with rich colours. Was this a gift from the 

great monastery? Great Walsingham is surrounded by sheep fold-courses and 

in the period of unrest in 1381 morrain attacks occurred. Despite setbacks, 

pilgrims continued to arrive. Some came by sea to Wells a port four                

kilometres to the north appropriately named for visitors to the sacred wells of 

the similarly named Walsingham. Wayside crosses guided their route keeping 

them on the western side of the River Stiffkey, which divides the churches of 

Great Walsingham from the main part of its village. 
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are self-evidently original parts of the walls in which they occur and thus 

define those walls as Norman. Supporting evidence is provided by the 

quoins of typical Norman size and proportions at the SW and NW corners 

of the nave also of Caen stone with which the string course neatly                

converges, showing that quoins, string course and wall were almost             

certainly built concurrently, and the round-headed south doorway provides 

further evidence for a Norman date.  
 

Whereas it can be accepted in principle that doorways, windows or quoins 

have sometimes been inserted into earlier walls without showing any tell-

tale evidence, it is just not credible on grounds of reasonable constructional 

practicability that a string course would have been inserted into an               

pre-existing wall of uncoursed flint rubble, and there is no evidence to         

suggest that the one here would have been. Later insertion would have         

entailed cutting a deep chase into irregular flintwork for the full length of 

the nave both sides and apparently the original chancel also, and then            

bedding and wedging the string course stones into the chase to an even level 

and line in slow-setting mortar; it is highly unlikely that such an extensive, 

troublesome and almost impracticable venture would have been undertaken 

for such a minor, unfunctional decoration. The even setting and jointing of 

the string course stones and the precision with which those in the small arch 

on the north side have been laid could, it is suggested, only have been 

achieved if they had been incorporated in the walls as they were being built.  
 

Nevertheless, despite that and the other Norman evidence, and the absence 

of any Saxon features, the church and the tower's circular stage have been 

claimed as pre-Conquest; the claim is based on unproved contentions that 

Norman church walls were never less than 3ft. thick and Norman nave 

widths never under 20 feet, and that therefore all the Norman stone features 

are later insertions into Saxon walls.  

On the evidence of the features described, the churchôs constructional  

history might be: 

C.12. Original Norman church and tower built. 

C.14. Formation of the pointed tower arch, and probably insertion of larger 

windows. 

C.15. South porch added. 

C.17 or 18. Re-building of the upper part of the tower circular stage and 

building the octagonal belfry.   

C.19.  Raising of the nave walls, renewal of windows and rebuilding of the 

chancel.                                                                                       

                                                                                                     Stephen Hart 
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FISH ASSOCIATIONS...  

Following the review of ñFish & Fishermen in Medieval                                  

wall paintingsò (December 2009 magazineðVol XXXV11 No 2) it set me 

thinking about ñfishò associations in the Bible, and churches generally.           

Fish (in the Greek language, ichthus - ȽɉŪɈɆ) was an early Christian symbol          

because the initial letters of the Greek words for Jesus Christ, son of God 

Saviour, form the Greek word for fish and  had early reference in Paedogogus 

III by Clement of Alexandria.  During the 1st century early Christians in          

Roman catacombs used fish symbols for secrecy  purposes.  Fish has several 

mentions both in the Old and New Testaments, and abound in the inland         

waters of Palestine as well as the Mediterranean, but curiously none are          

distinguished by name. Leviticus 11:9 tells us ñwhatsoever hath fins and 

scales in the watersò is declared clean and whilst 

all ñthat have not fins and scalesò are forbidden.    

Of the three Round Tower churches in Sussex, 

all on or near the Ouse, two: namely Lewes and 

Piddinghoe, have a fish weathervane on the 

spires atop the round towers.  Fish weathervanes 

(comparatively rare) will also be found at Filey 

and Flamborough, Yorkshire, again near the sea, and at Alciston, Sussex.  

However, the church at Southwold (described by Simon Jenkins as ñthe 

grandest of the galleons that once sailed the length of the Suffolk coast)ò has 

not a fish weathervane, but a ship.  The word nave is derived from the Latin 

word, navis ï meaning a ship.   All three Sussex round towers have spires 

(Piddinghoeôs and Lewesô roughly  equalling the height of the round tower; 

Southeaseôs less than half the height of its tower at 15ft) in a style quite          

different from those typically seen in East          

Anglia, although similar to Broomfield, Gt 

Leighs and Lamarsh  in Essex, Croxton and 

Quidenham, Norfolk and Welford in             

Berkshire. They are covered with shingles, 

the method of construction resembling          

overlapping pine cones or fish scales (see 

Southease left). 

 

Piddinghoeôs weathervane 

 

Local tradition says that All Saints Church had a round tower before it was 

demolished circa 1550. Bill Goode argued that a round tower is difficult to 

recognise on an aerial photograph of the site so there is some doubt about 

this question. The site is about 200 metres north-north-east of the surviving 

parish church of St Peters, just east of the B1355 road between Wells and 

Fakenham. 
 

All that can be seen on the ground is the rough outline of a church in the 

middle of a pastured field adjacent to Westgate Farm. There are few other 

early round towered churches in this north central part of Norfolk ï Little 

Snoring is four kilometres away and is the nearest to Great Walsingham. 

Ironically the Roman Catholic parish church of Little Walsingham only a 

mile from the site, has Englandôs newest round tower; completed in 2006.  
 

It is curious that this little village was called Great Walsingham yet its near 

neighbour is the world famous pilgrimage township which is called Little 

Walsingham. An urn containing half burnt human bones was found in the 

mid 1600s, in a field east of the site on the other side of the River Stiffkey. 

This discovery led the famous philosopher and physician, Sir Thomas 

Browne of Norwich to publish his great book, óUrn Burialô in 1658. A mid 

19th century vicar of Great Walsingham, the Rev James Lee-Warner further 

excavated the site and found 40-50 more urns including ancient coal used 

in the cremation process. They were originally thought to be Roman but 

later dated to the Anglian period of 7th century settlement in Norfolk. 

Clearly Great Walsingham (later called óOld Walsinghamô) was an              

important early settlement as its place name ending in óinghamô confirms.  
 

All Saints Church was fairly large. Its outline measures about 31ft by 93ft  

internally in length plus 18ft for the tower (including its walls). The church 

was broad and long in comparison with the little chapels of the pre-Norman 

period that have survived in Norfolk. A cushion capital with a scalloped 

moulding came from the site, which indicates at least some of the churchôs 

fabric was Norman. There is a great deal of stone masonry built into the 

walls of nearby buildings and field walls. In the eastern part of the village 

in Angel Cottage, Hindringham Lane there are some highly wrought        

architectural fragments including a carved angel and frieze panels. These 

are Perpendicular in character. They may have come from All Saints 

Church or indeed from the others in the same area that were demolished at 

the Reformation. 
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ST MARY AND ALL SAINTS CHURCH, GT WALSINGHAM  


